
 

London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

Tuesday, 22 November 2005 - 7:00 pm 
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Dagenham 

 
Members: Councillor C J Fairbrass (Chair); Councillor T G W Wade (Deputy 
Chair); Councillor J L Alexander, Councillor G J Bramley, Councillor H J Collins, 
Councillor C Geddes, Councillor S Kallar, Councillor M A McCarthy, Councillor M E 
McKenzie and Councillor L A Smith 
 
Declaration of Members Interest: In accordance with the Constitution, Members 
are asked to declare any personal or prejudicial interest they may have in any matter 
which is to be considered at this meeting. 
 
 
11.11.05     R. A. Whiteman 
        Chief Executive 
 
 

Contact Officer: Amanda Thompson 
Tel. 020 8227 2271 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 

Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail: amanda.thompson@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 8 

November 2005 (circulated separately)   
 
Business Items  

 
Public Item 3 and Private Item 15 are business items.  The Chair will move that these 
be agreed without discussion, unless any Member asks to raise a specific point. 
 
Any discussion of a Private Business Item will take place after the exclusion of the 
public and press.  

 
3. Establishment of a Children's Services Appointment Panel (Page 1)  
 
Discussion Items  

 
4. Performance Monitoring 2005/06 (Pages 3 - 7)  
 



 

5. Budget Monitoring 2005/06 (Pages 9 - 27)  
 
6. The Social Model of Disability (to follow)   
 
7. Parenting Contracts, Parenting Orders and Fixed Penalty Notices (to 

follow)   
 
8. Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 
9. To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to 

exclude the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to 
the nature of the business to be transacted.   

 
Private Business 

 
The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the 
Executive, except where business is confidential or certain other sensitive 
information is to be discussed.  The list below shows why items are in the 
private part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant legislation (the 
relevant paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972).   

  
 
Discussion Items  

 
10. London Riverside Ltd: Succession Arrangements for Single Programme 

Funded Projects (Pages 29 - 35)  
 
 Concerns the business affairs of a third party and legal issues. (paragraphs 7 

and 12)  
 

11. New Dagenham Library and Customer First Centre and Public Realm 
Improvements (Pages 37 - 50)  

 
 Concerns a contractual matter (paragraph 9)  

 
12. Axe Street Area Master Plan (Final Draft) and Demolition of Properties 

(Pages 51 - 67)  
 
 Concerns a land acquisition issue (paragraph 8)  

 
13. Acquisition of Properties and Authority to Use Compulsory Purchase 

Order Powers - Development of the Western End of Axe Street, Barking 
(Pages 69 - 74)  

 
 Concerns a land acquisition issue. (paragraph 8)  

 
14. Housing Futures Outline Delivery Plan (to follow)   
 
 Concerns a land disposal issue (paragraph 8)  

 



 

Business Items  
 

15. Castle Green Children’s Centre Services Contract (Pages 75 - 80)  
 
 Concerns a contractual matter (paragraphs 8 and 9)  

 
16. Any other confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are 

urgent   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

22 NOVEMBER 2005 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE STRATGEY 
 
URGENT ACTION - ESTABLISHMENT OF A CHILDREN’S 
SERVICES APPOINTMENT PANEL 
 

FOR INFORMATION 

Summary 
 
At the Executive on 11 October 2005, Members received a report on proposals associated 
with the formation of a new Children’s Services Department with effect from 1 April 2006.  
In that report, the Chief Executive advised that he would be carrying out an assimilation 
exercise in respect of the affected JNC officer posts (the Chief and 2nd tier officer posts) 
within the Education and Social Services Departments prior to interviews by a Member 
Appointment Panel.  The assimilation exercise was completed at the end of October.  
 
The Council’s Scheme of Delegation (Part C of the Constitution) requires the Executive to 
establish a Member Appointment Panel, which must include at least one Executive 
Member.  In order to meet the timescales agreed for setting up the new Children’s Services 
Department and to ensure that identified staff had assimilation interviews as soon as 
possible, the Chief Executive took urgent action under the provisions of paragraph 17, 
Article 1, Part B of the Constitution in appointing Councillors Mrs Alexander, Bramley, Cook 
and Fairbrass to the Children’s Services Appointment Panel. 
 
For information, the Appointment Panel is responsible for making a recommendation to the 
Assembly in respect of the Corporate Director of Children’s Services post and making 
appointments to the following 2nd tier posts: 
 
Divisional Director of Safeguarding and Rights  
Head of Integrated Services and Engagement  
Head of Pupil and Family Support  
Head of Quality and Learning  
Head of Policy Performance and Support  
 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is asked to note the action taken by the Chief Executive under the 
urgency procedures contained within paragraph 17.1 of Article 1, Part B of the Council’s 
Constitution in respect of the establishment of a Children’s Services Appointment Panel. 
 
Contact: 
Alan Dawson 
 

 
Democratic Services 
Officer 

 
Tel: 0208 227 2348 
Fax: 0208 227 2171 
E-mail: alan.dawson@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
Background Papers 
Letter from the Chief Executive of 1 November 2005 entitled “Children’s Services 
Department - Member Appointments Panel: Urgent Action under Paragraph 17, Article1, 
Part B of the Constitution” 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

22 NOVEMBER 2005 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE STRATEGY 
 
 
Title:  PERFORMANCE MONITORING FOR DECISION 

Summary:  

This report provides:  
� An overview of the Planning and Performance Management Framework and the impact 

on Performance Monitoring. 
� An update on the 2nd Quarter performance data for 2005/06, to promote discussion on 

progress, for a selection of the following performance indicators: 
– Best Value Performance Indicators (statutory) 
– Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) Performance Indicators 
– Local Public Service Agreements (LPSA) targets 
– Member Portfolio Holder Performance Indicators 

� Provides performance information to be considered alongside the budgetary information 
for the Council to promote value for money discussion.  (Please see the budget 
monitoring report also on this evening’s agenda.) 

Wards Affected: None  
Implications: 
Financial:  
Not applicable 
Legal: 
Not applicable 
Risk Management: 
Areas of performance that are highlighted as significantly under-performing, are not 
sufficiently discussed and adequate actions not identified. Subsequent cost and value for 
money issues are not explored.  CMT and the Executive to ensure that underperformance/ 
inadequate actions are thoroughly discussed. 
Social Inclusion and Diversity: 
The Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000 places a requirement on local authorities to 
make an assessment of the impact of new and revised policies in terms of race equality. 
Existing policies have already been subjected to impact assessments.  This Authority has 
adopted an approach of extending the impact to cover gender, disability, sexuality, faith, 
age and community cohesion. 
As this report does not concern a new or revised policy there are no specific adverse 
impacts insofar as this report is concerned. 
Crime and Disorder: 
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places a responsibility on local authorities 
to consider the crime and disorder implications of any proposals. There are no specific 
implications insofar as this report is concerned. 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 3



 
Recommendation(s): 
The Executive is asked to discuss and consider any significant performance issues 
highlighted by the information presented and decide the appropriate action that needs to 
be taken. 

Reason(s) 
To ensure that the Council’s performance continues to improve in order for Barking and 
Dagenham to become a ‘Good’ Council by 2006 and ‘Excellent’ by 2008. 

Contact Officer: 
Laura Nicholls 

Title: 
Policy and Review 
Officer 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 2517 
Fax: 020 8227 2806 
E-mail: laura.nicholls@lbbd.gov.uk  

 
1.  Introduction and Background 
 

1.1. From 2005/06 the Council has introduced a new Performance and Planning 
Framework, (see diagram) to ensure we focus on the performance of key 
service areas.  

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1.2. The framework sets out how our broad strategic aims are translated into 
specific measurable actions, through the development of annual service and 
financial priorities (the process of developing Service Scorecards).  In turn these 
inform team and individual objectives and appraisals.  

1.3. In light of this new framework, from 2005/06 some 200 indicators need to be 
monitored (alongside preparation for Inspection) to ensure the Council is aware 
of the progress made.   

Corporate Plan 

Aim:
“Together we will build communities and transform lives”

7
Community

Priorities

Strategic Vision
Barking and Dagenham in 

2020

Corporate Priorities for Action and Values

Service Scorecards

Team and Individual Objectives / Appraisals

PIs
Statutory 
Plans

Community 
Strategy

LSP

Floor Targets

Executive’s  
Portfolio 
Statements

Page 4



1.4. It is been agreed that The Executive will look at a manageable range of 
performance indicators quarterly referred from CMT.  These indicators include: 

� Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) Performance 
Indicators – These are critical to the CPA Service Scores and our overall 
CPA rating.  In addition, some CPA PIs have special rules applied to them.  
The performance weighting of these PIs is higher than the rest in the CPA 
basket and poor performance of these PIs will result in a lower service block 
score.  

� Local Public Service Agreement (LPSA) Targets – These will deliver a 
range of significant, stretched improvements in key services with a  
potential Performance Reward Grant (PRG) of £4.6 million. 

� Member Portfolio Holder Performance Indicators – These have been 
chosen by Portfolio Holders, as the key indicators which will be a priority for 
the Council over the coming year  

� A selection of some other Performance Indicators – To be determined 
by CMT. 

1.5. By monitoring Performance Indicators quarterly, the Executive will be able to 
identify problem areas at an early stage and take remedial action to improve 
performance.  There will also be the opportunity for the Executive to highlight 
areas of good practice within the Council and ensure that the good practice is 
shared throughout the organisation 

1.6. In addition to the Executive, the new Performance and Planning framework 
requires other forums to have a responsibility in reviewing the Council’s 
performance, using the performance monitoring graphs.  These forums are set 
out in the table below: 

Forum Frequency Purpose 
CMT (Corporate 
Management 
Team) 

Quarterly To monitor the key performance 
indicators crucial to the delivery of 
good quality services (CPA, LPSA and 
Member Portfolio Holder PIs) 

DMT 
(Departmental 
Management 
Team) 

Monthly / 
Quarterly (varies 
between depts.) 

Discuss performance information and 
agree action plans. 

Chief 
Executive’s 
Performance 
Boards 

Weekly In-depth analysis of key performance 
indicator issues facing the Council and 
what remedial action will be taken to 
improve performance. 

SMB (Scrutiny 
Management 
Board) 

Monthly Directors and their representatives 
whose departments have performance 
indicators in the bottom quartile attend 
this Board meeting to discuss the 
reasons for this and possible solutions. 

Page 5



 
Forum Frequency Purpose 
CMG 
(Corporate 
Monitoring 
Group) 

Quarterly (will go 
to next CMG 
following 
quarterly 
presentation to 
Executive) 

Oversee performance, in relation to the 
remainder of the performance 
indicators.  

 
 

2 Quarterly Monitoring at The Executive 

2.1 From 2005/06, the notes section has been replaced with an action plan.  This 
aims to articulate what actions will be taken over the coming year to ensure 
performance will improve.  It also takes into account the key risks to 
performance if these actions are not carried out successfully. 

2.2 For presentational purposes, each Performance Indicator is being reported in a 
graphical format, which allows performance to be shown over time and 
compared with other Local Authorities.  PI headings are traffic light colour-
coded and "smiley faces" have been added to clearly express how we are 
performing.  

2.3 Those indicators in the CPA basket and those that are considered High Risk are 
highlighted with a red tab at the top left hand of the graph.  Those CPA 
indicators with special rules applied are highlighted by a ‘skull and cross bone’. 

2.4 For the national indicators, neighbouring Borough information is shown as 
vertical bars on the graphs.   

2.5 Top 25% National and London target lines have now been removed from the 
graphs. They have been replaced with horizontal bands of colour.  These bands 
of green, amber and red represent either: 

� National - top 25%, middle 50% and bottom 25%  
� CPA - upper threshold, middle threshold and lower threshold 
� LPSA – Maximum Performance Reward Grant (PRG) achieved, 60% or 

more of PRG achieved and no PRG achieved. 
 

The graphs now clearly show how far performance is into or away from the 
bandings. (Please note it is only possible to compare our performance with the 
previous year’s top quartile targets as these are only released in the December 
of each year following the outturns for that year).  

 
2.6 For Social Services performance information, comparison is not made with top 

quartile data.  Comparison is made with Performance Assessment Framework 
(PAF) performance targets for England.  

Page 6



3 Comparing Performance 

3.1 Guidance from the ODPM advises each Authority to compare performance with 
other Local Authorities.  The monitoring system established allows the 
comparison of performance across a number of levels.  National indicators 
provide the greatest opportunity for comparing performance as each Local 
Authority is collecting and reporting identical information. 

3.2 Neighbouring Boroughs – Research undertaken by the Audit Commission has 
identified that people are particularly interested in comparing the performance of 
their Local Authority with neighbouring areas.  Barking and Dagenham compare 
their performance with the neighbouring boroughs of Redbridge, Havering and 
Newham. 

3.3 Top 25% of performing Councils – All authorities must aim to perform within the 
Top 25% of councils nationally.  Top 25% is a minimum performance standard 
set by central government to ensure that in key policy areas all local authorities 
are performing to at least a minimum level.   

4 Consultee 

4.1 CMT 

Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
� Best Value Performance Indicators Guidance 2005/06 
� Futures 2005/06 – Barking and Dagenham’s Corporate Plan  
� Consultation on Best Value Performance Indicators 2005/06 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

22 NOVEMBER 2005 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
BUDGET MONITORING REPORT APRIL TO 
SEPTEMBER 2005/2006 
 

For Decision 

Summary:  
 
The report updates the Executive on the Council’s revenue and capital position from the 
beginning of April to the end of September 2005.  
 
The report needs to be read and discussed in conjunction with the quarterly Performance 
Indicators report, covering the first half of the year, which is also being presented to this 
Executive meeting. 
 
For revenue, it highlights ongoing pressures in Regeneration and Environment and 
Housing and Health departmental budgets totalling about £0.8 million with other remaining 
Council services on target to meet their budget requirements by the year end. This is offset 
by a favourable position of interest on balances of £600,000 giving an overall balanced 
position for the Council’s budget by the year end.  This is an improvement of some £0.75 
million than that reported in last months monitoring report. 
 
It is expected such variances of pressures should not impact on the outturn position for the 
year but in those areas of service overspend continual work is required by Directors to 
ensure a reduction in the current forecasts. 
 
In order to alleviate the projected service overspends by the year-end the relevant 
Director’s are continually reviewing elements of their Service budgets to ensure a 
balanced budget is achieved by the year end.  The Regeneration and Environment 
Management Board has produced an action plan for implementation to achieve a balanced 
budget and is continually monitoring this.  If the need arises for an action plan in other 
areas to address the highlighted pressures then these will be reported, as necessary, in 
future monitoring reports. 
 
For the Housing Revenue Account, minimal pressures currently exist but these are being 
offset significantly by better income through service charges, rental income and better void 
performance of around £2 million.  The resultant position expected is for the relevant 
working balance to therefore increase to around at £4.9 million by the year end compared 
to the original budget of £2.9 million. 
 
For capital, the latest position is that there has been spend of around £27 million on the 
overall original budgeted programme of £96.3 million, with a current projection of a total 
spend of around £96.3 million (100%) by the year end.  This aspect will need to be closely 
monitored by Directors throughout the year to ensure maximum programmed spend is 
achieved by the year end.  
 
Wards Affected:  
 
This is a regular budget monitoring report of the Council’s resource position and applies to 
all wards. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 9



 
Implications: 
 
Financial:  
 
The overall revenue budget is indicating a balanced position against budget with Directors 
taking action to ensure this balanced position by year end. The capital programme is 
reported to match the original budget of £96.3 million but to be within the working budget 
of £120.8 million. 
 
Legal: 
There are no legal implications regarding this report. 
 

Risk Management: 
The risk to the Council is that budgets are overspent and that this reduces the Council’s 
resource position.  Where there is an indication that a budget may overspend by the year 
end the relevant Director has been asked to review the Departmental budget position to 
achieve a balanced position by the year end.  This may involve the need to produce a 
formal action plan to ensure delivery of this position.  Similarly, if there are underspends 
this may mean a lower level of service or capital investment not being fully delivered. 
 
Specific procedures and sanctions are in place through the Resource Monitoring Panels, 
Corporate Programme Management Office (CPMO), Corporate Management Team and 
the Executive. 
 
Social Inclusion and Diversity: 
As this report does not concern a new or revised policy there are no specific adverse 
impacts insofar as this report is concerned. 
 
Crime and Disorder: 
There are no specific implications insofar as this report is concerned. 
Recommendation 
The Executive is asked to consider and note: 
 
1. the current position of the Council’s revenue and capital budget. 
2. that the Regeneration and Environment Management Board and Director of Housing 

and Health are currently reviewing their budgets to ensure a balanced position by the 
year end and that the Directorate of Regeneration and Environment is continuing to 
address the position through a detailed action plan. 

3. agree a £50,000 drawing from the contingency to support an improved Burglary target 
under our Local Public Service Agreement and that this sum is reimbursed from the 
Performance Reward Grant due in 2006/07.  

4. note the position and projected out-turn for the Housing Revenue Account and agree 
that a revenue contribution of £2 million is made to support the capital investment in the 
Council’s Housing stock. 

 
Reason(s) 
As a matter of good financial practise, the Executive should be regularly updated with the 
position on the Council’s budget. 
Contact Officer 
Joe Chesterton 

 
Head of Financial 
Services 

 
Tel:020 8227 2932 
Minicom: 020 8227 2413 
E-mail joe.chesterton@lbbd.gov.uk 

Page 10



 
 
1.  Introduction and Background 
 
1.1 It is important that the council regularly monitors its revenue and capital budgets to 

ensure good financial management. It is practise now within the Council for this 
monitoring to occur on a regular monthly basis, which helps members to be constantly 
updated on the council’s overall financial position and to enable the Executive to make 
relevant decisions as necessary on the direction of both the revenue and capital 
budgets. 

 
1.2 The report is based upon the core information contained in the Oracle general ledger 

system supplemented by detailed examinations of budgets between the budget holders 
and the relevant Heads of Finance to take account of commitments and projected end 
of year positions. In addition, for capital monitoring there is the extensive work carried 
out by the Capital Programme Management Office (CPMO). 

 
1.3 The monthly Resource Monitoring Panels chaired by the lead member for finance, 

which monitor the detail of individual departments revenue and capital budgets also 
enhance and form the basis of the report. 

 
2. Current Position 
 
2.1  Overview for Revenue Budget 
 
 At the end of September 2005, the Council has a projected balanced budget for the 

year end.   This has moved from a projected overspend position of £0.75 million in 
the last monitoring report.  The main change has been the further decrease in the 
projected overspend position for the Regeneration and Environment Department 
coupled with an improvement in the Social Services budget position. 

 
 Current projections indicate that there are financial pressures within the 

Regeneration and Environment and Housing and Health budgets.  The update 
position, at the end of September, for the year end position is that for Regeneration 
and Environment there is a projected overspend of about £526,000 and for Housing 
and Health of £235,000.  For Social Services there is a projected underspend of 
£258,000 and also offsetting the projected overspends is currently a favourable 
position on interest on balances of around £600,000.  

 
3. Service Position 
 
3.1 General 
 

3.1.1 Details of each service’s current financial position are provided in Appendix 
A.  It is expected such variances are more indicative of pressures, however, 
should not impact on the outturn position for the year but in these areas of 
service overspend continual work is required by Directors to ensure a 
reduction in these current forecasts. 

 
  

Page 11



 3.1.2 At the Executive meeting on 12th July, Members approved that roll forwards 
from 2004/05 for the revenue budget amounting to some £3.0 million 
(2003/04 £1.9 million) be added to the relevant Departmental budgets for 
2005/06.  It is important to remind Members that Directors need to use these 
funds to deliver the relevant services associated with the agreed roll forwards 
and that the appropriate work is undertaken to ensure delivery of full spend 
by the year end. Additionally, consideration by Directors on the use of these 
roll forwards will need to be made where Departments are currently 
projecting overspends. 

 
3.2 Corporate Strategy 
 

At the end of September, Corporate Strategy has a projected year-end balanced 
position. 

 
Within this overall break even position there are offsetting variances are these 
explained below for each Division of Corporate Strategy. 

 
 3.2.1 Corporate Human Resources (HR) 
 
 Corporate HR has projected a break-even position.   The HR Departments are 
 currently undergoing a restructuring in order to centralise the HR processes across 
 the Council. 
 
 3.2.2 Legal Services 
 
 Legal Services has projected a break even position.   
 
 Land Charges continues to reflect a reduction in income to date.  Income received 

to the end of September 2005 is £238,000 in comparison to £350,000 and £403,000 
for the same period in 2004-2005 and 2003-2004 respectively.  The number of 
searches carried out to the end of September 2005 was 2,954 in comparison to 
3,385 to the end of September 2004, which represents a 13% decline. 

 
It is anticipated that income from Land Charges of £485,000 will be achieved by 
year-end against the budget of £659,000.  However, £200,000 is available, if 
required, from the contingency reserves to cover the actual shortfall at year-end, as 
agreed at the Executive on 22nd March 2005. 
 

Page 12



 The graph below shows the actual trend of Land Charges income from 2003-2004 
 to September 2005-2006 with a projection for the balance of 2005-06. 
 

Legal Land Charges 

£0

£10,000

£20,000

£30,000

£40,000

£50,000

£60,000

£70,000

£80,000

£90,000

£100,000

Months

In
co

m
e

03-04  61,039.20  70,232.00  67,587.80  67,880.00  69,059.40  67,575.10  75,705.60  61,608.80  51,051.00  36,972.00  66,204.78  90,211.46 
04-05  47,607.51  66,939.52  48,740.00  76,634.72  58,240.00  51,823.95  40,803.05  40,787.15  27,932.85  31,395.65  37,639.75  40,620.10 
05-06  43,687.90  37,172.50  44,770.00  40,975.00  29,733.00  41,404.00  48,500.00  48,500.00  31,535.96  29,100.00  38,800.00  48,500.00 

April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

 
3.2.3 Corporate Communications, Democratic Services, Policy and    
 Performance and Grants.  

 All of the above services are not projecting any material variance on their budgets at 
the year end. 

3.3 Education, Arts and Libraries 
 

3.3.1 Education 
 
There are a number of additional budget pressures totalling £375,000 that have 
been identified, including the carried forward overspend from 2004/05 of £216,000, 
however, positive action is being taken to ensure that these additional costs are 
covered and it is anticipated, at this stage, that the budget will break-even including 
the carried forward sum from 2004/05.  

 
3.3.2 Arts, Libraries and Cultural Services 

 
 The Arts, Libraries and Cultural element for this Department’s budget is also 
 projected to breakeven.  
 
 There are some overspends at present, but these will be offset by underspends 
 within other areas of the overall budget by the year end.   
 

Page 13



3.4 Finance 
 
  
 The Finance Department is projecting a minimal under-spend of £35,000 by the 
 year end. 
 
 3.4.1 Financial Services 
 

Financial Services has a projected under-spend of £96,000 mainly due to staff 
vacancies, which are currently in the process of being filled through permanent 
recruitment. 

 
 3.4.2 Internal Audit 
 

Internal Audit has a projected under-spend of £23,000. This is mainly as a result of 
not filling staff vacancies. 

 
3.4.3 Information Management and Technology (IM&T) 

 
 IM&T has projected to overspend by £44,000.  The Division is currently 

experiencing budget pressures in employee costs in the delivery of the support 
service across the Council.  

 
3.4.4 Revenue Services 

 
This service is expected to overspend due to the use of agency staff to cover 
vacancies at higher rates than salaries.  This overspend is being partially offset by 
the projection of Housing Benefits overpayment income in excess of the budget.  
Efforts are being made to successfully recruit to vacant posts in order to reduce the 
reliance on agency staff and therefore ensure that the Division remains within 
budget. 

 
3.4.5 Business Services 

 
Business Services is projected to break-even.  The projection includes a 
contingency of £54,000 to engage consultants to deal with systems development 
work for which we do not have the skills in house. 

 
3.5 Housing and Health 
 
 3.5.1 Housing General Fund 
 

General Housing is currently forecast to overspend by £30,000. 
 

 The Temporary Accommodation budget is currently under review, to ensure it 
 remains within budget with Housing Benefits currently forecast to be balanced by 
 the year end. 
 

  

Page 14



3.5.2 Health and Consumer Services 
 
 Health and Consumer Services is projecting to overspend in 2005-06 by £235,000, 
 due to the following issues; 
 

o The capital cost of early retirement’s now being charged to revenue will result in 
an £128,000 overspend (£104,000 in Trading Standards, £24,000 in 
Environmental Health).  In addition, there is pressure on supplies and services 
budgets of £33,000. 

 
o Licensing administration (£74,000).  The workload on processing applications for 

the new licensing law arrangements has been greater than anticipated in the 
agreed budget, especially in legal and democratic services.  A separate report 
on the current position is being prepared and will be presented to the Executive 
shortly. 

 
 As part of our Local Public Service Agreement, one of our targets is to reduce the 

number of burglaries.  To assist in meeting this target by the end of the year, which 
in turn allows the Council to be awarded more Performance Reward Grant from the 
Government, an injection of £50,000 to the Metropolitan Police is required.  It is 
recommended that £50,000 is met from the Council’s contingency to allow us to 
reach the necessary target, which will be reimbursed by the necessary Performance 
Reward Grant in 2006/07. 

 
3.6 Regeneration and Environment 
 

Following further detailed review and management action the projected overspend 
for this Department is now reduced from £0.996 million to £0.526 million, a 
reduction of £0.47 million on last month.  

 
The significant overspends continue to be 

o Sports Centres – loss of income and additional employee costs, £640,000 
o Highways maintenance, £200,000 
o Trade waste potential additional disposal costs, £136,000 

 
The DRE Management Board are continuing to robustly review the budget 
projections and identify further savings and efficiencies in order to achieve spend to 
budget. 

 
3.6.1 Regeneration Implementation Division 

 
Regeneration Implementation Division is now projecting to remain within their core 
budget through identifying additional funding and calling on previously agreed 
Corporate funding mainly for the recently held successful hosting of the BURA 
Conference.  

 

Page 15



3.6.2 Planning and Development 
 

Planning and Development continue to project to spend to budget against their base 
budget and have also identified a £50,000 contribution towards the overall 
departmental overspend from the 2004/05 revenue roll forwards. 

 
3.6.3 Asset Management and Development  

 
 There are known pressures in the rental income budget where tenants have 
vacated premises and this budget continues to be kept under close scrutiny.  
Savings have been identified of £180,000 to contribute towards the overall 
department projected overspend, which include a one-off back dated commercial 
rent. 
 
3.6.4 Environment, Highways, Roads and Transport 

 
Parking income projection remains at a net additional income of £160,000.  In 
addition, the introduction of CCTV in bus lanes has generated additional income of 
£40,000 in its first month.  This level of income is expected to fall off as drivers 
become more aware of the CCTV regime. 

 
The reduction in the 2005/06 revenue budget of £200,000 for Highways 
improvements continues to be a pressure on this services budget.  In addition, the 
cost of the stores function is not being met by offsetting income and there is a 
projected overspend of £72,000 for this budget. 

 
Further work on the potential impact of ELWA trade waste charging shows a 
projected overspend of £136,000.  A full briefing note was provided for the 
Executive meeting on 25 October 2005. 

 
The additional cost in Environment, Highways, Roads and Transport for wages is 
projected to be £40,000 and agency cover for long term sick leave in the 24/7 Care 
line function is now projected to reach £78,000. 

 
There are a range of smaller pressure items totalling £226,000.  These include 
additional traffic light maintenance costs, reduced grant funding, highways 
maintenance IT and consultancy costs.  

 
The deferral of leasing vehicles, reduced need for black sacks and more effective 
working on the Seek & Destroy Street Furniture project has contributed £120,000 to 
meeting the projected overspend. 

 
3.6.5 Leisure and Community Services 

 
The salary projected overspend of £165,000 is partly offset by additional income 
generated from schools of £67,000. The effect of the closure of the Dagenham 
Small Pool has resulted in further reduced income and despite the re-opening of 
Goresbrook Leisure Centre income continues to project below the budget by 
£542,000.  Wages in this Service Area are expected to be £61,000 greater than the 
budget.  

 

Page 16



A range of Leisure and Community Services budgets are being actively managed to 
contain costs and a contribution of £175,000 (last month £110,000) towards the 
projected overspend has been identified. 

 
3.7 Social Services 
 
 The Department is presently projecting a year end underspend of £258,000   

although caution is advised on full year projections after only six months’ activity. 
This is a significant improvement from the previous months overspend position. It is 
anticipated that the modest underspend at present ( 0.25%) will provide a 
contingency against normal winter pressures  and demands that impact on all areas 
of Social Services.  

 
Although Departmentally the financial position is now favourable, significant 
financial pressures still remain within the service, in line with looking after more 
clients and in pursuit of improved performance.  It is envisaged that by year end, 
depending on winter pressures, the overall financial position will in all likelihood be 
neutral. 

 
 Within a Gross Expenditure Budget of £102 million there are presently four 
significant pressure areas occurring 

 
o Children’s Out-Borough Residential Placements 
o Physical Disability Care Packages 
o Learning Disability Residential Care Services 
o Looked after Children’s Support budget. 

 
 The budget pressures in these areas are being off-set by favourable budget 
positions in other service areas, and substantively from unallocated resources, 
slippage from Government Grants and a modest departmental contingency for such 
occurrences. 

 
 The departments management team remain committed to maintaining a sound 

financial base, dealing with current overspend areas, and bringing the departmental 
budget in on target for the current year. 

 
3.7.1 Children’s Services 

 
 Modest financial pressures are continuing in Social Work recruitment, especially 

around high cost agency staff usage, but in particular regarding support budgets for 
Looked after Children such as Section 17 support.  Pressures also exist with regard 
to the Out-Borough Placements budget, this budget is projecting a net overspend of 
around £119,000 due to demands and additional numbers of children being placed. 

  
  

Page 17



 3.7.2 Older Persons Services 
 
 The budget is broadly on target when taking into consideration grant slippage and 

contingencies within Older Persons. There are particular financial pressures in the 
Care Management staffing area (£279,000 projected overspend).  Also there is 
pressure on the Care Packages budget.  These pressures are offset by a 
favourable budget position in Delayed Transfer of Care (DTOC)/hospital discharge 
arrangements, due to whole systems working with Health and investment in 
preventive services. 

 
 3.7.3 Adults with Disabilities 
 
 Significant pressures (£360,000) exist on the budget for Physical Disability Care 
 Packages, linked to increased demands and growth in Direct Payment packages.  
 
 Also in line with national pressures, residential care and care packages in Learning 

Disabilities are currently projecting overspends in total of around £660,000. Factors 
contributing to this position include the additional costs of existing placements and 
new volume.  

 
 Due to contingencies and delays in the full implementation of new mental Health 

initiatives, there is presently an underspend of about £250,000 which is helping the 
overall position in Disabilities.   

 
3.8 Customer First 
 

 The budget for Customer First is contained with the Corporate Strategy 
Department’s overall budget and is £3.072 million for 2005/06.  The current position 
is that full spend is anticipated for this budget, which is primarily the running costs 
associated with the call centre, the project implementation team and customer 
service team. 

 
4. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
4.1 A comprehensive review of the Housing Revenue Account has been undertaken, 

and this shows a current projected underspend in 2005-06 of approximately £2 
million.  Appendix D shows the detailed breakdown of the HRA budget position.  
The reasons for this position are identified in the following paragraphs.   

 
4.2 Rental income is estimated to overachieve by £733,000 and is due to a slow down 

in the sale of Council houses and flats sales. The downside of this is that the 
estimated capital receipts generated by the sales, and needed to part fund the 
Capital Programme, will be lower than estimated. 

 
4.3 The percentage of void properties has reduced during the year from the original 

estimate of 2.5% to 1.5%. It is estimated that this improvement in managing voids 
will create a saving in the region of £527,000. 

Page 18



 
4.4 Income from leaseholders by way of service charges is projected to increase by 

£340,000. Although the volume of sales is lower than expected, the number of flats 
being sold is rising faster than estimated. Currently over 70% of all sales are flats. 

 
4.5 A cyclical painting programme of £3 million was created this year to meet the needs 

of the Stock Condition Survey. Due to delays in determining the programme, a 
spend of only £2.6 million is anticipated by the year end. 

 
4.6 The repairs and maintenance budget is currently under review by external 

consultants and although there are pressures on the spend, it is projected to keep 
this within budget. If, however, over the next couple of months there is a need to 
commit more to repairs and maintenance, the Executive will be advised accordingly. 

 
4.7 At this stage, the underspend of around £2 million will be added to balances. 

However, it is proposed that this underspend be a revenue contribution to offset the 
loss of capital receipts from the slow down in Council housing stock sales to help 
support the major investment in the Council’s Housing Stock.    
 

5. Interest on Balances 
 
5.1 The current position is that this area of the budget has improved performance and 

that current projections show a favourable variance on the budget by the end of the 
year.  As at the end of September this is estimated at about £600,000 for the year.  
The favourable position is arising due primarily to performance on investments 
being better than expected coupled with a larger investment base due to a much 
lower than expected spend on the Capital Programme in 2004/05, which was 
identified in the outturn report to Members on 12th July. This positive position will 
allow the strengthening of Council balances at the year end. 

 
6. Savings and Pressures – Budget Decisions 2005/06 
 
6.1 The Savings and Pressure items approved by Members as part of the 2005/06

 budget process is being closely monitored by relevant Directors and the Director of 
Finance.  Total savings for the EPCS block amounted to £7.017 million and 
pressures of £3.424 million.  A summary by Department on their performance to 
date for meeting these targets is shown at Appendix B. 

 
6.2 The latest position for 2005/06 is that the majority of the level of savings required 

and pressures commitment is being contained within relevant Departmental 
budgets.  Where specific savings items are not being actioned the relevant 
Directors have reviewed their budgets appropriately.  This relates to the 
Regeneration and Environment Department where the Director is identifying other 
areas of savings to ensure the identified target has been met for the year. 

 
7. Capital Programme 
 
7.1  The Capital Programme is being managed by the Capital Programme Management 

Office (CPMO) team in the Department of Regeneration and Environment alongside 
financial input from the Finance Department.  A Summary of the latest position for 
the 2005/06 programme is shown in Appendix C.  

Page 19



 
7.2 As at the end of September, approximately £27 million of this year’s programme has 

been spent out of an overall original budget for the year of around £96.3 million.  It 
is quite usual for the majority of spending on capital schemes to occur in the latter 
part of the year as a result of tender exercises, consultation etc, however, the spend 
to the end of September is 28% of the total programme. 

 
7.3 Included within the working budget are the net roll forwards from 2004/05 totalling 

£14.1 million to assist with better delivery of the overall programme.  The relevant 
schemes associated with the rollforward sums are continuing be monitored through 
the Resource Monitoring Panels and by the Corporate Programme Management 
Office (CPMO) 

 
7.4 The current projections indicate that there will be an overall spend by the year end 

of some £96.3 million in line with the original budget.  This compares to projections 
of spend of £100.2 million in last month’s report.  The main variances are the lower 
spend projected on internal works on the housing stock of £2 million and £1.2 
million on the rephasing of the Customer First programme of One Stop Shops.  The 
projected percentage final spend of the capital programme is 100% of the original 
budget and 79.3% against the working budget. 

 
7.5 Regular liaison between the CMPO and project sponsors is taking place to ensure 

that projections of spend on capital schemes are robust and achievable by the year 
end.  It is important, therefore, that Directors are closely monitoring this position to 
achieve identified spend of their programmed budgets by the year end.  The CPMO 
and Finance Department are regularly challenging projections by Departments and 
mentioned in the last monitoring report reasons for major variances will be identified 
and reported as part of future monitoring reports.  Last month’s monitoring report 
included a number of reprofiled schemes and these are being updated in the report 
supplied to project sponsors each month by the CPMO and the outcome of this 
exercise will feature in next months Budget Monitoring report to the Executive.  For 
this month, however, no schemes require reprofiling. 

 
8. Consultees 
 
8.1 The members and officers consulted on this report are: 
 
 Councillor Bramley 
 Corporate Management Team 

Heads of Finance  
Capital Programme Management Office 

 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
Oracle reports 
CPMO reports 
 

Page 20



Original Working Budget Actual Projected Projected
Budget Budget to date to date Outturn Outturn

Variation
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Department

Corporate Strategy 5,118            5,161          1,454          1,341          5,161          0

Education, Arts & Libraries 141,359        144,546      72,273        73,316        144,705      159

Finance -                -              -              0 -35 -35

Housing & Health 4,260            5,641          3,747          11,857        5,876          235

Regeneration and Environment 29,910          30,608        14,586        15,336        31,134        526

Social Services 71,263          71,664        38,004        39,679        71,406        -258

Total for Department's 251,910        257,620      130,064      141,529      258,247      627

Other Services

Corporate Management 5,673            5,692          2,846          2,656          5,692          0

General Finance -32,319 -37,837 -18,840 -19,668 -38,437 -600

Contingency 1,082            871             -              -              871             0

Levies 5,906            5,906          2,953          2,975          5,906          0

Total for Other Services -19,658 -25,368 -13,041 -14,037 -25,968 -600

Total Council Budget  232,252        232,252      117,023      127,492      232,279 27

REVENUE BUDGET 2005/2006

SUMMARY OF POSITION - APRIL TO SEPTEMBER 2005 

APPENDIX A

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPENDIX B 
 

BUDGET SAVINGS AND PRESSURES 2005/06 
 

SAVINGS 
 

BUDGET SAVINGS 2005/06 
SUMMARY 

Department Amount 
£’000 

Projected 
Outturn 

£’000 
Corporate Strategy 687.7 *687.7 
Education, Arts and Libraries 77 77 
Finance 503 503 
Housing and Health 645 645 
Regeneration and Environmental 
Services 1,592 1,487 

Social Services 1,570 1,570 
Corporate 1,942 1,942 
TOTAL 7,016.7 6,911.7 

 
Comments: 
 
*In addition to these EPCS savings there are savings to ring-fenced areas of £90.9k which 
are on target to be met. 
 
Additionally a saving of £225k within the Housing Revenue Account has been made, as a 
contribution to Corporate and Democratic Core costs. 
 
PRESSURE 
 

BUDGET PRESSURE 2005/06 
SUMMARY 

Department Amount 
£’000 

Projected 
Outturn 

£’000 
Corporate Strategy 1,541.5 1,541.5 
Education, Arts and Libraries 33 33 
Finance 310 310 
Housing and Health 0 0 
Regeneration and Environmental 
Services 491 399 

Social Services 0 0 
Corporate 1,048 1,048 
TOTAL 3,423.5 3,331.5 

 
Comments: 
 
All services are intend to utilise all additional budget pressures apart from DRE. 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Original Working Actual Projected Projected Projected
Budget Budget to date Outturn Outturn Outturn

Variation Variation
against against
Working Original 
Budget Budget

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Department

Corporate Strategy 4,069             5,012            590               2,531            -2,481 -1,538

Education, Arts & Libraries 20,287           31,216          5,923            16,808          -14,408 -3,479

Finance 4,041             5,358            642               5,299            -59 1258

Housing & Health 38,627           41,088          10,004          38,800          -2,288 173

Regeneration and Environment 25,942           34,300          7,587            28,316          -5,984 2,374

Social Services 3,286             3,812            2,254            3,813            1 527

Total for Department Schemes 96,252           120,786        27,000          95,567          -25,219 -685

Accountable Body Schemes

Regeneration and Environment -                710               1                   710               0 710

Total for Accountable Body Schemes -                710               1                   710               0 710

Total for all Schemes  96,252           121,496        27,001          96,277          -25,219 25

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2005/2006

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURE - APRIL TO SEPTEMBER 2005 

APPENDIX C

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



B
U

D
G

ET
A

R
Y 

C
O

N
TR

O
L 

ST
A

TE
M

EN
T 

A
S 

A
T 

SE
PT

 2
00

5
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 D

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 R
EV

EN
U

E 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

B
U

D
G

ET
 

20
05

/0
6

W
O

R
K

IN
G

 
B

U
D

G
ET

 
20

05
/0

6

B
U

D
G

ET
 

PR
O

FI
LE

 A
S 

A
T 

SE
PT

 2
00

5

A
C

TU
A

L 
A

S 
A

T 
SE

PT
 2

00
5

VA
R

IA
N

C
E 

TO
 

D
A

TE
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
 

O
U

TT
U

R
N

 
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
 Y

EA
R

 
EN

D
 O

VE
R

 / 
(U

N
D

ER
) S

PE
N

D

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

In
co

m
e

N
et

 R
en

t o
f D

w
el

lin
gs

(6
3,

50
2)

(6
3,

50
2)

(3
1,

75
1)

(3
2,

64
2)

(8
91

)
(6

5,
04

8)
(1

,5
46

)
O

th
er

 R
en

ts
(2

,3
21

)
(2

,3
21

)
(1

,1
60

)
(1

,1
58

)
3

(2
,2

29
)

92
O

th
er

 C
ha

rg
es

(3
,2

67
)

(3
,2

67
)

(1
,6

34
)

(2
,2

21
)

(5
88

)
(3

,8
00

)
(5

33
)

To
ta

l I
nc

om
e

(6
9,

09
0)

(6
9,

09
0)

(3
4,

54
5)

(3
6,

02
1)

(1
,4

76
)

(7
1,

07
7)

(1
,9

87
)

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
Pa

ym
en

t t
o 

O
D

PM
8,

36
6

8,
36

6
4,

18
3

4,
11

9
(6

4)
8,

36
6

0
G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
16

,0
60

16
,0

60
8,

03
0

8,
35

9
32

9
16

,0
41

(1
9)

Sp
ec

ia
l M

an
ag

em
en

t
6,

46
0

6,
46

0
3,

23
0

3,
25

7
26

6,
58

7
12

7
R

ep
ai

rs
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
20

,8
87

20
,8

87
10

,4
44

9,
05

2
(1

,3
92

)
20

,7
93

(9
4)

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
- D

w
el

lin
gs

13
,8

89
13

,8
89

6,
94

5
6,

94
5

0
13

,8
89

0
D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

- O
th

er
76

5
76

5
38

3
0

(3
83

)
76

5
0

R
en

t, 
R

at
es

 a
nd

 O
th

er
 C

ha
rg

es
77

0
77

0
38

5
16

4
(2

21
)

77
0

0
C

ap
ita

l C
ha

rg
e

16
,0

00
16

,0
00

8,
00

0
8,

00
0

(0
)

16
,0

00
(0

)
Pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r B

ad
 D

eb
ts

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 
Li

m
ita

tio
n

4,
07

0
4,

07
0

2,
03

5
2,

03
5

(0
)

4,
07

0
(0

)
TO

TA
L 

EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
E

87
,2

68
87

,2
68

43
,6

34
41

,9
30

(1
,7

04
)

87
,2

81
13

N
ET

 C
O

ST
 O

F 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

18
,1

78
18

,1
78

9,
08

9
5,

90
9

(3
,1

80
)

16
,2

03
(1

,9
75

)

C
ap

ita
l C

ha
rg

e 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t
(1

6,
00

0)
(1

6,
00

0)
(8

,0
00

)
(8

,0
00

)
0

(1
6,

00
0)

0
In

te
re

st
 E

ar
ne

d
(1

,4
70

)
(1

,4
70

)
(7

35
)

0
73

5
(1

,5
00

)
(3

0)
R

ev
en

ue
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

n
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t
(7

65
)

(7
65

)
(3

83
)

0
38

3
(7

65
)

0
N

ET
 O

PE
R

A
TI

N
G

 C
O

ST
S

(5
7)

(5
7)

(2
9)

(2
,0

91
)

(2
,0

63
)

(2
,0

61
)

(2
,0

04
)

W
or

ki
ng

 B
al

an
ce

 b
/f

(2
,9

13
)

(2
,9

13
)

(1
,4

57
)

0
1,

45
7

(3
,1

74
)

(2
61

)
W

or
ki

ng
 B

al
an

ce
 c

/f
2,

97
0

2,
97

0
1,

48
5

0
(1

,4
85

)
3,

23
1

26
1

N
ET

 C
O

ST
0

0
0

(2
,0

91
)

(2
,0

91
)

(2
,0

04
)

(2
,0

04
)

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 10

Page 29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7, 12 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 11

Page 37

By virtue of paragraph(s) 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47

By virtue of paragraph(s) 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 12

Page 51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 61

By virtue of paragraph(s) 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63

By virtue of paragraph(s) 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 67

By virtue of paragraph(s) 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 13

Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 15

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank


